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April 9, 2019 

  

 

Ms. Kimberly D. Bose, Secretary  

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission  

888 First Street, NE  

Washington, D.C. 20426  

 

RE:  Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC 

Atlantic Coast Pipeline 

 Docket No. CP15-554-001 

 VOF Easement BAT-02202 (Robinson et al.) 

 

Dear Secretary Bose:  

 

The Virginia Outdoors Foundation (VOF) would like to file comments regarding information that 

has recently come to light that the Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC (Atlantic) plans to acquire a 

permanent easement for an access road on a VOF easement in Bath County.  As you can see from 

Enclosure 1 “Eminent domain parcel 23-1_20190404_0001(0).pdf”, Atlantic is currently moving 

forward with condemnation proceedings to acquire a permanent easement for this access road 

without action from the VOF.  In reviewing the FEIS issued by FERC in July 2017, this access 

road is mentioned on numerous occasions and specifically in the following sections: 

 

• Volume II, Part 1 – Page 179 in Appendix B (PROJECT FACILITY MAPS) illustrates the 

access road in question.  This road, which traverses FS 124, also known as Duncan Knob 

road, is labeled as “36-014.AR2.”  

• Volume II Part 4 – in Appendix E (ACCESS ROADS FOR THE ATLANTIC COAST 

PIPELINE AND SUPPLY HEADER PROJECT) identifies road “36-014.AR2” on pages 

214 (E-30) and 380 (G-16). 

 

The Duncan Knob Forest Service Road in also mentioned in these sections of the FEIS: 

 

• Volume III, Part 1 – page 463 (R-46) 

• Volume III, Part 2 – pages 25 (T-24) and 141 (A-11, T-140) 

• Volume IV, App Z Part 7 – page 177 (Z-2310), comment C0-108-2  
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Nowhere in all of the references to this access road does Atlantic reference that the road is located 

on a property encumbered by a VOF open space easement. In fact, in the Environmental Analysis 

Section of Volume I, beginning on page 591 (4-401) which speaks particularly about the impacts 

to resources protected by the Virginia Outdoors Foundation there is no mention of this access road.  

In addition, documentation from Atlantic to the landowners as recently as March 1, 2019, 

erroneously indicated that the property in question was not under a VOF open-space easement (see 

Enclosure 2 “Road Grant Easement 3-1-19.pdf”). 

 

According to the U.S. Forest Service, the road in question is a forest service road (see Enclosure 

3, Forest Service Letter 5-10-18) with prescriptive rights that are not assignable to a third party 

such as the ACP.  According to the Forest Service, ACP would need to secure “rights across any 

private lands or they could propose a road realignment to adjust the road to be completely on NFS 

land.” 

  

As background information, The Virginia Outdoors Foundation is a body politic created by an Act 

of the Virginia General Assembly in 1966 and was established to “to promote the preservation of 

open-space lands and to encourage private gifts of money, securities, land or other property to 

preserve the natural, scenic, historic, scientific, open-space and recreational areas of the 

Commonwealth.”  VOF is Virginia’s leader in land conservation currently holding over 4,000 

open-space easements on nearly 850,000 acres throughout the Commonwealth.    

 

On October 16, 2017, the VOF Board of Trustees conditionally approved conversions of open 

space on 10 protected open-space easements in Highland, Bath, Augusta and Nelson counties for 

approximately 52.92 acres of encroachment from the gas transmission line and associated access 

roads.  VOF worked with Atlantic in good faith for several years to process their applications for 

conversion of open space land through 10 open-space easements.  Atlantic never requested the 

property at issue be included in the conversions approved by the VOF Board of Trustees and, to 

date, has not submitted an application to VOF for conversion of this property. 

 

Since 2014 when VOF was first contacted by Atlantic regarding possible encroachments on VOF 

open space easements, VOF’s position that these properties should be avoided has never changed.  

These open-space easements that are held on behalf of the Commonwealth of Virginia under 

authority of the Open-Space Land Act (Va. Code § 10.1-1700 et seq.) to preserve natural, scenic, 

historic, scientific, open-space and recreation areas represent the fulfillment of state policy, and as 

real property interests of the Commonwealth, they are not subject to condemnation.   

 

In this particular case, VOF strongly urges FERC to require that an alternative access road be 

found since this route has never been authorized by the VOF Board of Trustees.  VOF would also 

argue that this access road was presented as an error in fact and should never have been included 

in the FERC Certificate issued on October 13, 2017.   The fact that Atlantic is currently moving 

forward with condemnation proceedings (see Enclosure 1: “Eminent domain parcel 23-

1_20190404_0001(0).pdf”) without any consideration or decision from the VOF Board of 

Trustees is particularly alarming. 
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As FERC is specifically tasked with the responsibility to reduce environmental impacts from 

Natural Gas Projects, it is our hope that full consideration will be given to the importance of this 

error and the significance of VOF’s concerns.  Please contact me at 804-577-3337 or via email at 

mlittle@vofonline.org.   

 

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

 

   

 

Martha Little  

Deputy Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enclosures: 

1. Eminent domain parcel 23-1_20190404_0001(0) 

2. Road Grant Easement 3-1-19 

3. Forest Service Letter 5-10-18 

 

 

CC [EMAIL ONLY]: 

• Kevin Bowman, Environmental Protection Specialist, FERC 
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